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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2023.

China’s post-COVID recovery is hindered by geopolitical rivalries and
the market is swayed by growth prospects. Poor market sentiment has
been weakening the demand from the private sectors for enterprise
application software and related services during the reporting period. On
the other hand, demands from the government and semi-government
organisations in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”")
for IT solutions and services remained solid. Consequently, the Group'’s
overall revenue maintained at HK$128.1 million, approximately the same
as last year (2022: HK$128.6 million). As a result of increased staff costs in
project delivery, the Group's gross profit decreased by HK$2.7 million to
HK$67.6 million (2022: HK$70.3 million).

The improved bank interest income contributed to the increase in other
income and gains of the Group by HK$2.2 million to HK$8.1 million
(2022: HK$5.8 million). The fluctuation in the equity market had adversely
impacted the valuation of the Group’s on hand financial assets by HK$0.5
million (2022: HK$1.6 million). In line with the inflated staff costs and the
increase of the amortisation of deferred development costs, the overall
expenses went up by HK$5.3 million to HK$55.3 million (2022: HK$50.0
million).

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders reduced by HK$3.7 million to HK$18.2 million
(2022: HK$21.9 million). The basic earnings per share also dropped to 7.38
HK cents (2022: 8.86 HK cents).

In view of a sustained healthy financial position, the Board declared the
distribution of an interim dividend of 5.5 HK cents (2022: 6.5 HK cents) per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

Although the weak market sentiment has caused delay in purchase
decisions of new enterprise customers, the Group’s Application Software!"
business continues to receive stable recurring income from software
annuity and Software as a Service's (“SaaS") subscription services from the
established customer base.

The Group’s Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”) business
in Hong Kong continued to benefit from sustainable demand for add-
on software and services from its existing customers. However, the
order backlog from new customers carried over from previous year was
decreased. As a result, it has reported a lower profit contribution to the
Group during the reporting period. The performance of the Group’s
HRMS business in Mainland China was also affected by the weak market
sentiment and keen competitions. Nevertheless, with sustainable
recurring income from existing customers and tightened cost control, it
managed to maintain a similar profit contribution to the Group. During
the reporting period, the HRMS business team acquired a number of
sizable new orders from various customers, including a large foreign
banking corporation in Hong Kong, large hotel chains, multi-national
manufacturers, professional service providers and a fintech company.

The Group's enterprise software business attained double digit growth in
recurring SaaS and maintenance income but the performance of different
product lines varied. The overall profit contribution to the Group was
reduced due to increased project delivery cost and delay in new contract
conclusion during the reporting period.

The Enterprise Procurement Management Software (“EPMS”) showed
growing demands from both business enterprises and public
organisations on purchasing compliance initiatives. The business
continued to grow its recurring SaaS and maintenance incomes
encouragingly by more than 25% period-on-period, as well as attaining
growth in professional service revenue despite the resource constraint.
However, its profit contribution to the Group was severely impacted
by higher staff cost and the transition from one-off on-premises license
revenue recognition to the Saa$S recurring revenue stream.

Benefiting from its stable recurring maintenance income and new
contracts from customers with demand for information repositories,
control and compliance, the Enterprise Information Management
Software (“EIMS”) business managed to uplift its profit contribution to the
Group during the reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHRE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”) attained a
comparable revenue level with the same period last year amidst the slow
recovery of the retail market in general. However, its profit contribution
to the Group was also impacted by the higher staff cost.

The business of CISC Limited was still in the investment stage as the
new technology arm of the Group, focusing on cyber intelligence with
Artificial Intelligence (“Al”) and Natural Language Processing (“NLP”)
related technologies. The management is confident of this direction and
is actively exploring new business opportunities.

The Group has stepped up its research and development (“R&D")
resources to deliver new software offerings based on the latest
technology platform. Within the product roadmap, the Group aims to
launch a new version of Human Capital Management (“HCM”) software at
the end of 2023 to capture the increasing market demands for enhancing
talents development and organisation management efficiency. The
new HCM platform is built with modular and cloud-based architecture,
enabling the Group to further improve its SaaS business model and react
more responsively to individual customer requirements and streamline
the delivery process.

Solutions and Integration Services

Leveraging the steady demand for IT solutions and services from
the HKSAR Government (the “Government”) and semi-government
organisations, the Group’s Solutions Services? business maintained
double-digit growth in its revenue and profit contribution during the
reporting period.

Benefiting from completion of the software enhancement project
(the “Project”) for the Customer Care and Billing System (“CCBS”) of
the Water Supplies Department last year, the Managed Services!?
business managed to deliver backlog projects and new variation orders
smoothly during the reporting period. Moreover, the performance of
the Development Services? business was also improved in the first half
of 2023 with the completion of various delivery milestones of some
key projects. The business continued to secure new orders from the
continuing engagement in various projects of the Government and from
the multi-year framework agreements with commercial enterprises and
government related organisations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)

Conversely, the Integration Services? business in Mainland China was
sluggish during the reporting period. The management believes the
performance would improve in the remaining of the year and achieve
steady results in 2023.

e-Service and related business

Slowed trading activities continued to hinder the import and export
activities in early 2023. In line with the decrease in overall trade volume,
the revenue and the performance of the Group’s GETS business was
slightly dropped during the reporting period.

The Group has been granted a licence (the “GETS Licence”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents
since 2004. The Group’s GETS Licence was further extended by the
Government in June 2023 for additional three years until the end of 2027.

Investments

In the absence of material valuation loss, the Group’s Investments
segment recorded a profit of HK$0.6 million (2022: loss of HK$0.4 million)
in the first half of 2023.

PROSPECT

To address the IT resources shortage and increasing staff cost in HKSAR,
the Group has been increasing the scale of its software development
centres in Mainland China. The management is glad to report that the
resources built up in Shenzhen has strengthened our delivery capability
and mitigated gradually the cost pressure and resources constraint
in Hong Kong. The management believes the development centres
will become a strong support for the Group to develop best-of-breed
products as well as capturing the market potential competitively.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE ()

PROSPECT (CONTINUED)

Looking ahead, the management believes the order closing momentum
will gradually be picked up by strengthened go-to-market activities
planned by the Group in the second half of the year. With the enhanced
software product portfolio and improved resources management
among Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group will become more
competitive in its business environment.

Despite economic recovery and consumer sentiment remaining
uncertain, the Group is still confident in its growth potential leveraging
our enhanced customer base and revenue streams with strong
recurring nature. Considering the efforts made by the Group to improve
operational efficiency and its business expansion plan to the Greater Bay
Area, the management remains positive in the growth prospects in our
business segments and cautiously optimistic in the second half of 2023.

Footnotes:

m The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
enterprise application software and e-business services for enterprises
including the provision of (i) enterprise application software (including
SaaS$ product offering) with implementation and ongoing support services
for Human Resource Management, Enterprise Procurement Management,
Enterprise Information Management and Enterprise Retail Management
(collectively the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government Electronic
Trading Services (“GETS”"), cloud services and other related value-added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development (including SaaS product offering); (ii)
Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services; and (iii) Integration Services for the provision of IT
systems and network infrastructure with related design, implementation and
ongoing support services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

The Group's total revenue was slightly dropped by HK$0.5 million, or
0.4%, to HK$128.1 million (2022: HK$128.6 million) during the reporting
period. The minor decrease was primarily caused by mixed effects of the
reduction from the Application Services business and the growth from
the Solutions Services business.

The cost of sales and services went up by HK$2.2 million, or 3.8% to
HK$60.5 million (2022: HK$58.3 million) as the staff costs were persistently
going up. The overall gross profit, being adversely impacted by the
increased operating costs, had been deflated by HK$2.7 million, or 3.8%
to HK$67.6 million (2022: HK$70.3 million). Respectively, the gross profit
margin fell to 52.8% (2022: 54.7%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Revenue and gross profit (Continued)

The other income and gains materially increased by HK$2.2 million, or
38.6% to HK$8.1 million (2022: HK$5.8 million). The increment was mainly
contributed by the increase in bank interest income by HK$5.4 million, or
350.2% to HKS$6.9 million (2022: HKS$ 1.5 million), meanwhile the absence
of government subsidies under the Employment Support Scheme
significantly reduced the overall government subsidies and incentives
(including value added tax refund) by HK$3.1 million, or 76.6% to HK$0.9
million (2022: HK$4.0 million).

The loss of the Group’s on hand investments in real estate investment
trusts (“REITs”) was reduced to HK$0.5 million (2022: HK$1.6 million)
during the reporting period.

Expenses

Due to the increase in staff costs, the selling, general and administrative
expenses (including the selling and distribution expenses, the general
and administrative expenses, net and the finance cost) went up by HK$2.0
million, or 4.4% to HK$48.6 million (2022: HK$46.5 million).

The commencement of amortisation of deferred development costs of
the Group’s Solutions Services business since June 2022 had significantly
inflated the other expenses by HK$3.3 million, or 94.3% to HK$6.7 million
(2022: HK$3.5 million).

The income tax expense dropped due to the decrease in assessable
profits generated during the reporting period and the increase in
deferred tax credit arising from the amortisation of deferred development
costs of the Group’s Solutions Services business.

Net profit

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company fell by 16.7% to
HK$18.2 million (2022: HK$21.9 million) primarily due to the increase in
operating costs. Relevantly, the net profit margin (profit for the period
attributable to shareholders of the Company divided by the revenue) also
dropped to 14.2% (2022: 17.0%).

Non-current assets

Amortisation of other intangible assets and depreciation of right-of-use
assets were the main contributors for the decrease in the non-current
assets of HK$3.6 million, or 1.4%, to HK$262.2 million (31 December 2022:
HK$265.8 million).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHRE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current assets

The current assets slightly dropped by HK$15.7 million, or 3.8%, to
HK$397.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$412.7 million). The change was
mainly attributed to the decrease in cash and bank balances and trade
receivables.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities

The Group’s current and non-current liabilities slightly reduced by HK$6.8
million, or 4.4%, to HK$148.6 million (31 December 2022: HK$155.4
million). The reduction was in line with the decrease in trade payables,
other payables and accruals.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets of the Application Services business dropped due to
decrease in trade receivables and amortisation of other intangible assets
while the segment liabilities of the business increased in line with the
increase in lease liabilities.

Segment assets of the Solutions and Integration Services business mildly
increased due to increase in contract assets offset by decrease in trade
receivables and other intangible assets while segment liabilities of the
business dropped in line with decrease in both trade payables and
contract liabilities.

Segment assets of the Investments business dropped as financial assets
recorded valuation losses during the reporting period.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent slightly moved

downward to HK$509.4 million (31 December 2022: HK$521.6 million).

The change was mainly the mixed results of the profit earned in the 2023
interim period, the purchase of shares held under the restricted share
award scheme and the payments of the 2022 final and special dividends.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$63.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$63.5 million), listed
equity securities of HK$3.7 million (31 December 2022: HK$4.2 million)
and bank balances of HK$0.8 million (31 December 2022: HK$1.0 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$111.9 million (31 December 2022: HK$111.9 million) of
which HK$21.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$21.3 million) were utilised
as at 30 June 2023.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$298.6
million (31 December 2022: HK$309.8 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2022: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2022: 3.0) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.5% (31
December 2022: 22.9%).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE ()

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2023 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2022 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2023, the Group employed 356 full time employees
and 12 part time employees (31 December 2022: 361 full time employees
and 12 part time employees).

As at 30 June 2023, the Company operates a share award scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the employees who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations as well as to retain
them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Saved as disclosed in the report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the period and up to the
date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2023.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of HK$0.055 (2022:
HK$0.065) per ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2023.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
4 September 2023 to Tuesday, 5 September 2023, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 September 2023. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Monday, 18 September 2023 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Tuesday, 5 September 2023.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 August 2023
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRmAIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies FIEtXGEBER AR ([ARR)EE=S
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the unaudited interim  ([E =& |) f£ 1tk 25178 2 7] J B A 7 (4t
condensed consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries I AEE)HE T -_=FA=1+HIL
(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2023, SEAAZ REEZERLESPHEEER
together with the comparative figures. These unaudited interim LLEEF o W EREEBIZERAL AP EES
condensed consolidated results have been reviewed by the Company’s CA&AHRAAREZEZESER -
audit committee.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT  fBi4R S B &K
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BEABA=1tHIAEA
2023 2022
—E-= —E- -
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RisEz)
Notes HKS’000 HK$000
k=3 FET FET
REVENUE WA ) 5 128,102 128,582
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS R AR (60,473) (58,270)
Gross profit EH 67,629 70,312
Other income and gains, net H A e A Ko W a5 88 5 8,066 5,821
Foreign exchange differences, net PE 3 BH R (26) 503
Fair value losses, net: NEEEBBEFE
Financial assets at fair value through BRFEERE AR
profit or loss L RBEE (501) (1,569)
Investment properties BEWE - (80)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (16,232) (15,954)
General and administrative expenses, net — R MITH R S F 5 (32,160) (30,395)
Finance cost R e 7 (191) (195)
Other expenses E i (6,726) (3,461)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B B % R 6 19,859 24,982
Income tax expense Fr8 i 8 (1,853) (3,156)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 H 1 o A 18,006 21,826
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: PPN
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEFEDN 18,237 21,895
Non-controlling interests FEFE S R (231) (69)
18,006 21,826
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERRREMN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF HK cents HK cents
THE PARENT 10 B BN
Basic BN 7.38 8.86
Diluted e 7.35 8.82
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BRI e

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHILAEA

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEX) (REgsEz)
HK$’000 HKSs000
FETT FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 1 7 F 18,006 21,826
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HfhZEUW A~ (&18)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that R &R - EtE2ER A (EE)
may be reclassified to profit or loss in AREEM AR ER R
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBREECELER
foreign operations 134 (1,827)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AHEEEBARE
FOR THE PERIOD 18,140 19,999
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL :
Owners of the parent NGIE SN 18,371 20,068
Non-controlling interests FE 2 I M A (231) (69)
18,140 19,999
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B S B R

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—EC-= —E-F
ANA=+H +ZA=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&= =Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
k=3 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HEREE 11 1,175 1,250
Investment properties LA 12 66,710 66,710
Right-of-use assets ERREE 13(a) 12,419 10,815
Goodwill BES 14 135,001 135,001
Other intangible assets Hiv @\ AE 15 39,008 45,734
Financial assets at fair value through BATELERAKRZ
profit or loss — debt investment VB EE-—EBIRE 18 2,100 2,100
Deposits e 2,512 2,020
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE B 21 3,263 2,205
Total non-current assets ERBEEREA 262,188 265,835
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 16 16
Trade receivables FEYE 5 BR K 16 30,893 50,916
Contract assets BREE 17 41,015 25,301
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - me RHEAM
receivables JE WA 15,823 15,897
Tax recoverable AR R TR IE 6,168 5,527
Financial assets at fair value through RATEKEERARZ
profit or loss - listed equity investments ~ /& E— E TR AR E 18 3,704 4,205
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITHER 761 1,020
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBECEE 298,613 309,773
Total current assets MEVEELE 396,993 412,655
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and ENE SRR - EMER
accruals RIA N e IR 19 58,478 69,160
Contract liabilities BHEE 20 53,636 54,190
Lease liabilities HEBRE 13(b) 8,459 7,415
Tax payable FE@TR A 11,753 8,469
Total current liabilities nBBERE 132,326 139,234
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 264,667 273,421
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAR
LIABILITIES 526,855 539,256
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RS BRI R ()

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
AA=t+H +ZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (f& &%)
Notes HK$’000 HKSs000
btiE FET FiET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables H fth fE A 5/ I8 19 - 39
Contract liabilities aHEaE 20 1,698 1,407
Lease liabilities HEAaE 13(b) 4,879 4,612
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIREE 21 9,679 10,107
Total non-current liabilities SEmREBERE 16,256 16,165
Net assets AEEE 510,599 523,091
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEAELESR
the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account %17 4 B Bk 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share BIE B R &I A0 2B &)
award scheme BEZRHD (4,724) (6,204)
Other reserves Hith & 436,059 418,918
Proposed final and special dividends #OR R B3 X Bl IR B - 30,882
509,388 521,649
Non-controlling interests FEPESI M 1,211 1,442
Total equity Mg 510,599 523,091
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RS EREER

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAEEAELR.
Other reserves
At
Shares held
under the
Share  restricted  Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwil Reserve  fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests equity
it
B
kL]
2Ef BH  HEEE RAGAR L B EXRD 72 REAH FBRIfE s
kx EEE  ZRH 1 B 2 R ikl k& et Ea it
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSUO0 HKS 000 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSOOD HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSOOD
7T  FEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  FEr  FEr TEn TEr TEr TEn
At January 2022 (audited) s
(&z7) MUY 53104 6011) 5335 (1227) 746 B : N1 E I 7AT I /AT 148 5369
Profitfor the period THEET - - - - 21,895 - 21,895 (69 21826
Other comprehensive income for the period: ~ XEARIE (B 2E 4N «
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEREELE,
offoreign operations ERZE - - - - - - (1827) - - (1827) - (1827)
Total comprehensive incomefor the period A HR2EMALE - - - - - - (1827 2189 - 20,068 (69 1999
Purchase of shares held under the BEARARNRDHEE
restricted share award scheme Tk - - (988) - - - - - - (988) - (988)
Vesting of shares held under the ERAIRG REEET
restricted share award scheme hh&E - - 1057 (1057) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R ERZH - - 306 - - - 306 - 306
Final 2021 dividend declared k=%Z - - - - - - - 43) (27,180) (27,3 - (27203)
At30 June 2022 (unaudited) W-RZERAZTR
(R&8%) MUY 53104 (5942) 4584 (1227) 746 (875) 444965 - 5143M 1419 51573
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BR(E)

Attributable to owners of the parent

—=

LSS

PP

BRRREARRE
Other reserves
Hihe
Shares held
under the Proposed
Share  restricted Share-based Exchange final and Non-
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special controlling Total
capital  account  scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividends Total interests equity
it
AR
BUED )
BEf Rt HEEE  ROER EE i EXRD #8  RRAE FEm E&
Bx  EER  ZRf# B fi B¢ e wH REARE L] BR ]
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
F8r  FEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  FEr FEr FEn TEn TErL TEn TER
At1January 2023 (audited) RZB-ZE£-5-B
(825 W99 53104 (6204) 5455 (1227) M6 (3189) 423133 30882 521,649 142 53,001
Profitfor the period REEE - - - - - - -8 -8 (231) 18,006
Other comprehensive income for the period:  ZHEEM2ERA :
Exchange differences on translation REBNEBREEL
of foreign operations EXER - - - - 134 - - 134 134
Total comprehensive income forthe period ~ AHE2ARAAE - - - - - 134 18237 - 183N 231) 18140
Purchase of shares held under the BEARARGEEHHER
restricted share award scheme Th# - (400) - - - - - (400) (400)
Vesting of shares held under the ARHRAREHEET
restricted share award scheme RHER - 1,880 (1,880) - - - - - -
Share award arrangements RoEBZH - - 677 - - - - 677 677
Final and special 2022 dividends declared S =E= £ RHRER
k& - - - - - (27 (0882  (30,909) - (30909
At30June 2023 (unaudited) RZBZZERBZTA
(#EE8) 24949 53104 (4724) 425 (1.221) 746 (3,085) 441,383 - 509388 1201 510599
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ﬁﬁ EHII‘/T\/\IEEUILE%%

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=TRLEAMEA

2023 2022
—EBZ=F —EF- -
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
iz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZBF B HERE
Profit before tax B 50 B N 19,859 24,982
Adjustments for: IR
Finance cost BBER 7 191 195
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (6,892) (1,531)
Dividend income from listed investments BATFELSERARZ £
at fair value through profit or loss RERSWKA 5 (142) (194)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWZE - BEREHBEE
and equipment, net ZWa g 6 (6) m
Fair value losses, net: NEEBEFRE:
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELERARZ
profit or loss BB EE 501 1,569
Investment properties BEWME - 80
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - -BERSB2TE
equipment 6 348 466
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREEEZTE 6 3,958 4,291
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWE ZERFREFRE 6 902 299
Amortisation of other intangible assets H ﬁﬁﬂ/ BE#EH 6 6,726 3,461
Equity-settled share-based payment Mt E AR AR
expense 677 306
26,122 33,923
Decrease in inventories FERD - 19
Decrease in trade receivables A E SRR D 19,121 7,649
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TBRFOE - e REMEYK
other receivables FIRIE N (418) (2,021)
Increase in contract assets BHEERN (15,714) (11,220)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables ERE SRR - EMENR
and accruals 1B M ER R IE/W (10,721) (4,735)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHaERD (263) (3,545)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERe 18,127 20,070
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net BB/ (BE) BENGEHK
R (805) 122
Overseas taxes refunded Blg MR IE 107 -
Net cash flows from operating activities REZPIBZRERE
R 17,429 20,192
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

AR E RS RNER(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHLAEA

2023 2022
—EZZ=F e
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RiEE%)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities REFHMELRENE
HEE 17,429 20,192
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBFEBZEERE
Bank interest received BUERTTHI S 6,892 1,531
Dividends received from listed investmentsat & AFELEFZ AR £/
fair value through profit or loss BERSWA 142 194
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE  WEIEERERE
equipment (273) (400)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, ~ EE¥E - liE LR EER
plant and equipment FTiS /1A 6 1
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 KR 1T EFUR L/ (4240) 259 (158)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank W IR 2 'JHE E iL Az
deposits with original maturity of more than 4K 18 R 17 7% ZURl
three months when acquired (&) (58,587) 86,921
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing REZHME/ (A 2R
activities MEFHE (51,561) 88,089
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METBHAZRASRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares held under the restricted 2 & B[R &l % (5 S22 )T 811B T
share award scheme &l (400) (988)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFHAS B (4,294) (4,013)
Dividend paid BERERE (30,909) (27,223)
Interest paid BERFIE (191) (195)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REERDMACREREFHE (35,794) (32,419)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND B &R ERRSEEZEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R) 28 (69,926) 75,862
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of BB hERARCEE
period 210,969 116,497
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net REY L TEFH 179 (1,695)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRZAERERAREEE
AT END OF PERIOD 141,222 190,664
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReREAREEELRDIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGRE I BARREMRZ
condensed consolidated statement of RehERREEE
financial position 298,613 285,643
Non-pledged bank deposits with original WiERRIMABR=@A 2
maturity of more than three months when EEFRITER
acquired (157,391) (94,979)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGERENERMTL
condensed consolidated statement of cash e hZERRCEE
flows 141,222 190,664
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise application software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software (including Software as a Service (“SaaS”)
product offering) with implementation and ongoing support
services; the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"),
cloud services and other related value-added services;

. provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development
(including SaaS product offering); provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; and provision
of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and ongoing support services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The interim condensed consolidated financial information of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 has been prepared in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 Interim
Financial Reporting issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”).

The interim condensed consolidated financial information does not
include all the information and disclosures required in the annual
financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the
Group's annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim
condensed consolidated financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, except
for the adoption of the following new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first time for the
current period’s financial information.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

The nature and impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has applied the amendments since 1 January 2023.
The amendments did not have any impact on the Group's
interim condensed consolidated financial information but are
expected to affect the accounting policy disclosures in the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The Group has applied the amendments
to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after 1 January 2023. Since the
Group's policy of determining accounting estimates aligns with
the amendments, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
Group has applied the amendments on temporary differences
related to leases as at 1 January 2022, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions other than leases that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022, if any.

Prior to the initial application of these amendments, the Group
applied the initial recognition exception and did not recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial
application of these amendments, the Group recognised (i)
a deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences
associated with lease liabilities, and (ii) a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-
use assets as at 1 January 2022. The quantitative impact on the
financial information is summarised below.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(¢) (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

3. BRfEEKRKE 225 (F)

(0

Impact on the interim condensed consolidated statement of

(%)

BB & B AEK A
éﬂi :

financial position:
Increase/
(decrease)
As at 30 June
2023
B ORd)
BE-—Z-=%
~A=1+H
Note HKS’000
k=3 FET
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Deferred tax assets RIET I A B i) 885
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (869)
Net assets BESFE 16
Equity EE
Retained profits (included in other reserves) RE &N GTAEMEE) 16
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRRHER ARG ER 16
Total equity HEm 16

Note (i): The deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liability arising
from lease contracts of the same subsidiary have been offset in
the statement of financial position for presentation purposes.

Impact on the interim condensed consolidated statement of

profit or loss:

fiEEG) - RITER2M HEKEAF
MRS R RELSMIRENIA
BEMREREAE R
FMBRR R AP EH -

HH B e R XA -

Increase
For the

six months
ended

30 June 2023
2

BZE
—EZ=F
~NA=+H
1EXEA
HKs’000
FET

Income tax credit
Profit for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for
the affected entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or
reasonably estimable information of their exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. Entities are
required to disclose the information relating to their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023, but are not required to disclose such
information for any interim periods ending on or before 31
December 2023. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the scope of
the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not have any
impact to the Group.

3. BRfEEKRKE 225 (F)

(d

FEGFERF 125 (BFT )
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise application software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software (including SaaS product offering) with
implementation and ongoing support services; the GETS, cloud
services and other related value-added services;

(b) the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development (including SaaS product
offering); provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services; and provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and
ongoing support services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that unallocated interest income,
unallocated other income and gains, net, unallocated foreign
exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, and corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

(a)

Operating segments

RETHEN (B)

(a) RBEDI

Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
ERR% BAARREARS RE ag
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-cE -Z--fF Z®C-CE -E--F ZBIZE -F--F CZECZE -Z--F
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REBR) (REBR) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FEr AT FEr AT FEr FAT FEr FAT
Segment revenue; AHYA:
Sales to external customers HETIAEP
(note 5) GED) 75,612 79,134 51,564 48,442 926 1006 1281028 128582
Intersegment sales HEREHE - - 3113 - - - 3113 -
Otherincomeand gains,net ~~ EHMARMEFE 1,021 3% 7 % 146 236 11740 5861
76,633 79458 54,684 48,468 1,072 1242 132,389 129,168
Reconcilition: HE:
Elimination of interseqment sales 7 207 # £ 51 i (3,113) -
Profit before tax RBATR A 129,276 129,168
Segment results THEE 14992 2971 12,561 9942 543 (449 28,09 31464
Reconcilltion: 8% -
Unallocated interestincome R AEF EHA 6,8921 15314
Unallocated otherincomeand ~ RATE A R IE
gains, net #a -A 3,704
Unallocated foreignexchange R ARE B ZEFE
differences, net (26) 503
Corporateand other unallocated PR EMANEFE
depreciation (107) (170)
Corporateand other unallocated ¥R EHANEFR
expenses (14,996) (12,050)
Profit before tax REFRN 19,859 2498
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. REIBEHR (K)

(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #& I (E)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
& i R 5 BRTERSHRRH kg a5
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
kSt ke St = S “E2C
—§-cE +-f c-B-z=E TR ZBI:ZE TR ZBIZE t2A
AAZTR =f-F AB=tA  =ft-A #AZTR =t-8 RAZTE =t-F
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EEn) (REEEK) (430 (REER) (=0 (RE8R)  (4ER0)
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FEn FAT FEn FHT FEn FAT FEn AT
Segment assets PHEE 200413 207455 737 70863 72522 03 M5672 351341
Reconcilation: HE
Comorateand other unallocated 2R EfASEEE
assets 313,509 327,149
Total assets HEER 659,181 67849
Segment liabilities AH8E 98,930 92903 18,148 21872 685 685 117,763 121,460
Reconcillation: HE.
Corporateand other unallocated R EREH AT EE
liabilities 30,819 33939
Total libiliies Bt 14858 155399

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS128,102,000
(2022: HKS128,582,000) in the condensed consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains,
net, of HK$8,066,000 (2022: HKS5,821,000) in the condensed

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

(a) Operating segments (continued)

RETHEN (B)

(a) REDH(H)

Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
JE F R 5 BREERSH S RE ag
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZZE C“Z--fF CZEZZE -T--F CZECZf “Z--F ZEIZE “E-C
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REFR) (REER) (REER) (RERK) (REER) (REER) (REE0)
HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS 000
FEr AT FEn AT FEn AT FEn AT
Other segment information: £t 25&% .
Net fair value losses on RENELTEEREE
investment properties - - - - (80) - (80)
Net fair value losses on EATEEERNEL
financial assets at fairvalue BT EELATEEE
through profit orloss FE - - - (501) (1569) (501) (1569)
Amortisation of other AhEREERY
intangible assets 2,874 3,48 3,852 213 - - 6,726 3461
Depreciation ik 1178 1352 501 466 - - 1,679 1818
Corporate and other PERERKARNE
unallocated depreciation 2,627 2939
4,306 4,757
Impairment/(reversal of RERGREEREDL
impairment) of trade ERE AEFRE/
receivables recognised (BEHE) 58
in the condensed
consolidated statement of
profit or loss, net* 847 319 55 (20) - - 902 299
Capital expenditure™ ERATH 52 165 158 - - 7 24
Corporate and other PERABKAR
unallocated capital BERR»
expenditure™ 56 176
27 400

*%

Including impairment of trade receivables recognised in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the application services segment of HKS1,262,000 (2022:
HK$466,000) and the solutions and integration services segment
of HK$238,000 (2022: HKS125,000), respectively, and reversal of
impairment of trade receivables recognised in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HKS415,000 (2022: HKS 147,000)
and the solutions and integration services segment of
HKS183,000 (2022: HKS 145,000), respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment.

*%

B E B47 & 18 25 25 BT HERR 2K
B FEFA R 7 B8 R AR R 4
PIRTE 77 80,2 FEW B 5 BR 70 a8
7 B 51,262,000 7T (—F = =
4F : 466,000,% 7T ) K 238,000,% 7T
(ZZF = =4 :125000%57T) X
R4 & 18 28 2K AT HEZR K &
JEJF R 75 53 B8 R AE o 7 5 e B2
R 5.2 FEW B 28R 5 #E [ )%,
18 73 Bl 415,000 7T (—F = =
F : 147,000 7T) KX 183,000,% 7T
(—ZF = —4F : 145000%7T) °

BEXHBIEFEYE BER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERR ML (E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. K& 2 3HER (&)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FKEHIPREFZHA
Hong Kong and
other countries/regions Mainland China Total
EARAMER HE HE R L]
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—BE-=E —F-- —E-ZE —F-- —E-ZE T
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REER)  (REEK) (REER)
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEn FET FEr FET FAT FET
Segment revenue: FHBA
Sales to external customers HETIREP 103,213 102,097 24,889 26,485 128,102 128,582
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WABRTIARFEATEN A
customers. =
(ii) Non-current assets (i) HFREBEE
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —Eg-=
ARA=t+H +TZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (F&EZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BE 141,093 147,803
Mainland China A R 113,220 111,707
254,313 259,510

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

(c) Information about a major customer

Revenue from transactions with an external customer
amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2023, revenue from a major
customer of HK$38,557,000 (2022: HK$33,889,000) was
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the
application services segment and the solutions and integration

services segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

RETHEN (B)

(c)

—RXERFZEH

RE—ZBINRBEPR G ZWALL
NEFBIKA10%3L A F -

HE_ZTZ_Z#XXA=Z+tAHL
B kB — %IEE)EZHAU\
438,557,000 T (Z &2 ==
33,889,00078 7T) ° ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁx
EiﬁlJﬁAﬂEﬁﬁﬂEi‘k“*ﬁﬂﬁx/ﬁﬁ
ERERBRESBHELR

WA - H AR W 5s F R
WADHTIT :

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHIELAEAR

2023 2022
—E=-= —EZF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RagEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HREEFAHNHWA 127,176 127,576
Revenue from other sources R EH AR A
Gross rental income from investment EWE 2B WARTE R
properties and interest income EBEE 2R EWA
from treasury investments 926 1,006
128,102 128,582
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5.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - Ht A R Wz 388 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFAHHEA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFUAZH
Solutions and
Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRARR
ERR%E ERR% g
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FETT FET FET
For the six months ended BE-ZE-=%xH=*H
30 June 2023 E7R{E A
Segments &
Types of goods or services EmRRHEER
Sale of goods and provision of 18 E o MR R IUT
software and GETS services BEFEFRS 13,431 3,371 16,802
Provision of software implementation $& & { & jits & #88 fR 7% »
and related services, IT solutions BABEBARRER R
implementation and related E RS
services 23,634 24,881 48,515
Provision of Saa$S product offering & {80 {4 B AR 765 /= o S 4 v
and maintenance services BR 7% 38,547 23,312 61,859
Total revenue from contracts with KRB E P A AR AU A
customers 75,612 51,564 127,176
Geographical markets i & ™ 45
Hong Kong and others BAREAM 52,795 49,603 102,398
Mainland China FE A 22,817 1,961 24,778
Total revenue from contracts with KRB B P& #HE U A
customers 75,612 51,564 127,176
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON ST
Goods and services transferred ata W3 — B EEE S 0 KRB
pointin time 13,431 3,371 16,802
Services transferred over time R— B EE RS 62,181 48,193 110,374
Total revenue from contracts with 2R E B P & #1842 A
customers 75,612 51,564 127,176
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HbW AR Wz F 58 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFAHNWEA (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DHFUAEH (F)

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
FRT R R
J& AR 7% SRR k]

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REg&E=Z) (REg&EZ) (RigEZz)

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FETT FET FET
For the six months ended BE-Z-—§XA=+H
30 June 2022 IEA{E B
Segments &
Types of goods or services EmRRHEER
Sale of goods and provision of 318 E o MR R
software and GETS services BEFEFRS 17,638 1,500 19,138
Provision of software implementation 4t & { & jifs & 48 #8 AR 7%
and related services, IT solutions BB BATRER L
implementation and related E RS
services 24,146 24,748 48,894
Provision of Saa$S product offering & {80 {4 B AR 765 /= o S 4 v
and maintenance services BR7& 37,350 22,194 59,544
Total revenue from contracts with 2R B B F & 418 2 A
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
Geographical markets i & ™ 45
Hong Kong and others BAEREAM 57,136 44,072 101,208
Mainland China FEIA 21,998 4,370 26,368
Total revenue from contracts with R BB F A 482U A
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON T
Goods and services transferred ata A3 — B8 E S 0 KRB
point in time 17,638 1,500 19,138
Services transferred over time R— B NEE RS 61,496 46,942 108,438
Total revenue from contracts with KRB Z & 49 E UL A
customers 79,134 48,442 127,576
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5.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iij) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision of software and GETS services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60
days from the date of billing.

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from
the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained
by customers as the Group’s entitlement to the final payment
is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the respective
contracts.

Provision of SaaS product offering and maintenance services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services

are rendered and payments in advance are normally required
before rendering the services.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR
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WA - H WA R Wz 358 (&)
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-
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;}fﬂo
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HbW AR Wz F 58 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFAHNHWA (E)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued) (i) BAIEE ()

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as

RARNA=+EBS

REHRTEOR

ECRETHEHBDORET) WX B

at 30 June are as follows: BRSO T
2023 2022
—Z-= —E-=
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&EZ) (RigEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Amounts expected to be recognised as CRETEAER AN
revenue:
Within one year —F R 53,636 51,355
After one year A —F 1,698 1,172
55,334 52,527

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
three years. All the other amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

EORERTRENETHNRZE
REBRERHN - FRERD S
AN B me = 5 R E ACH) 4 7 R
B-MBEEMEDEEZHR TED
BEENRZERSBRABHN —
FABRBEA - LRBRENE

BATEERZREIATERE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHILEAEA

2023 2022
—E-= T _F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (CRisEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Other income and gains, net Hi A R U&= F8E
Bank interest income RITHREHA 6,892 1,531
Government subsidies* BT 48 B > - 3,704
Value-added tax refund received 1 Bl B R 683 153
Dividend income from listed investments at Z A FELERZ AR 2 £
fair value through profit or loss wEREHA 142 194
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HE W « BE M & {EEH
and equipment, net 2 Wz FER 6 1
Others HAt 343 238
8,066 5,821
* The subsidies in the prior period were granted under the * 272 Al R B 1 B & A R

Employment Support Scheme of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies, relating to the subsidies.

7T 12 BT EY R LR 5 B T »
X 7 S L A T 7 R IS A 1%
e EE T -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRB{ADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANE @2 BRFADE &R (GEA)
T3 %18 -
For the six months ended 30 June
BEXA=1THLXER
2023 2022
—E=-= B _F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RisEz)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEKAE 16,747 17,563
Cost of services provided IR AR 75 A AR 43,675 40,648
Depreciation of property, plant and WE- -BELRZBEZTE"
equipment’ 348 466
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 3,958 4,291
Amortisation of other intangible assets™ Htmp aEgg- 6,726 3,461
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant & ¥ZE - BE L RE
and equipment, net HEB 2 W F5E (6) (1
Employee benefit expense™*: EERM R :
Wages, salaries, allowances and other TE- e R LEM
benefits & F 75,893 71,987
Equity-settled share-based payment f e 45 DA RR 9 AT R 2
expense 677 306
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTE T B 50
(defined contribution schemes)™ (EFEMEREED ™ 4,150 3,549
80,720 75,842
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWE SRR EFE 902 299

*%

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the period of
HKS$51,000 (2022: HKS59,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services”
on the face of the condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HKS6,726,000
(2022: HKS$3,461,000) is included in “Other expenses”on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. At 30 June
2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2022: Nil).

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software
products of HKS11,992,000 (2022: HKS10,109,000) and utility billing
system of Nil (2022: HKS4,355,000), respectively.

Inclusive of an amount of HK$43,675,000 (2022: HKS40,648,000)
classified under” Cost of services provided”above.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

*  HAYE - BERREZITE 51,000
BT (ZF = =4 : 59,000% 7T) 4 A
Bt e Bam &2 [HERRFEKZ]
/ﬂj °

w HE R A A EE 36,726,000 T
T F T T 4F 1 3461,0005 ) A B
BtraBm & [EME A -

wox KEBERBIETF - AT BRI A
A AR LB HEHKF o RZE
C=ENAZAFH REFYERE
W ey 2 34 7] FH R B A 7 18 G A AR IR
DEEBS (T FE - —F ) -

. BEEEHEREMFERRNHAE
BWE XTI REEKL D
B 511,992,000 (= F = — 4 :
10,109,000, 7C) R #F (= F = — 4 :
4,355,000,57T) °

t BESER I ERREREKL]Z
2(5643,675,0008 0 (= F = — 4 :
40,648,000,%5T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

7. FINANCE COST 7. BBEH
For the six months ended 30 June
BEARA=1THILAXER
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RisEZz)
HKs’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZAE 191 195
8. INCOME TAX 8. FifEHt

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the period, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profit tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessment profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessment profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

EBFNERIBEABEARESE
EZEFTERE R E165% (ZF
T 0 165%) (EHEE - EASE—
M B AR A A TSR A
TR o Z M B A A8 & £ 2,000,000%
T (=& = = £ : 2,000,00078 7T) &}
T M5 32 8.25% (— T — —4F - 8.25%)
R MESRERFEFIBIZ16.5% (=
T F 1 16.5%) B o HA R R
Foaflz MBETBREBERNEB LS ER
FTERR /e iERIZERAHRRTE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANAZ=+tHLAEAR

2023 2022
—EB-=HF g
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgsEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Current - Hong Kong BNHA— &%
Charge for the period HNZ W 3,255 3,927
Overprovision in prior periods BT EAE 2 IR - (13)
Current — Elsewhere BIVER — H b 30 [=
Charge for the period HANZ W 84 21
Deferred i 1s (1,486) (779)
Total tax charge for the period HMABIER HAEE 1,853 3,156
In July 2022, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the EAUBR(BRBER R

“IRD") issued an enquiry letter to a subsidiary of the Company
regarding the claim for enhanced deduction of certain research and

development expenditures. The subsidiary had further provided
part of the requested information and documents in support of the
deduction claim and replied to part of the enquires from the IRD
in February 2023. The IRD is in the process of further review of the
claim.

+ AR LR R —HH B A F 3 H A E

- ARBRRES

T BB X B0 B

SMNRL - ZMBARER T =%
“ARARBERIEL D B E M —
R ZRKHE D BB R XA
% B F0R, o TS B IE B % FUOR R HE —
HERE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the claim
and, therefore, the financial effect (including the amount or timing
thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry. However, the directors
believe that, subject to availability of the required evidence, the
subsidiary has valid grounds to pursue the claim for enhanced
deduction. Accordingly, no further provision for Hong Kong profits
tax is considered necessary at this stage.

In March 2023, the IRD issued protective assessments to another
two subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) of the Company demanding
tax of approximately HK$805,000 in aggregate for the year of
assessment 2016/17. Per preliminary discussion with the assessor-
in-charge, the IRD is reviewing the tax affairs of the Subsidiaries for
the years of assessment from 2016/17 onwards and the issuance of
the protective assessments is merely for the purpose of avoiding
the year to become statutorily barred. During the discussion, the
IRD informed that, at this early stage, they are focusing on the
nature and the deductibility of certain expenditure/expenses.
The Subsidiaries have lodged objections against the protective
assessments and would provide relevant information and
documents in support of the deduction claims once they are being
requested by the IRD. In April 2023, the subsidiaries have purchased
tax reserve certificate of HK$805,000 at the request of the IRD. In July
2023, the IRD replied that prompt actions will be taken to process
the objections.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably on the outcome and the
financial effect (including the amount or timing thereof, if any)
of this tax review. However, the directors believe that the tax
reporting of the Subsidiaries have all along been properly handled.
Accordingly, no further provision for Hong Kong profits tax is
considered necessary at this stage.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

B ERRME(E)

Frig®i (&)

ARAFEZRR RZNYPREE - &
A EMAARENERE LA AR
MmPKEE (BREESENIERH (0
B)) A EFRR GCEGHER
BOBRT ZMBARERDIERE
REFEIMIBMRE - Bt - BERY
BARBEBNSRELE - SBE -

HERR-_E-_=F=ARAQAR
IRRWBRAR ([ZEWBAR]) &8
HREEFTR - Bkpi=F—7,—+t
FRTFE G A ££49805,000 78 7T HY
R RIBETEEETNI T
RERIEREZENBARR-E
=R/ FHENIREE RS
EE - MZTAEDRENETR - JE
A EZRMFEETRRER M
HREF WP RR - Rt P EIREER -
SEHEINETILE BANHEER
LN -ZEMBAREHRER
FHREER YEERMERER 18
Y FAHOABER R - R
T_=FMNA ZEWBLARNMEE
TR B E kA8 B 805,000 8 LA Z ©
RERR-_ZE-_=4+AREBHEER
BRIEZ R -

ARBEERR RABERELASE
BETRARBEZNGEREMBZE (B
meBEgER(WE)) L TNEAT
BEXRRE ZEMNBRAR—EAH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

9. DIVIDENDS

(a)

9. RE

Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has (a)
determined that an interim dividend of HK$0.055 (2022:

HK$0.065) in cash per ordinary share should be paid to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the

Register of Members on Tuesday, 5 September 2023.

Dividend attributable to the previous financial year approved (b)

during the interim period.

RHPHPMREEREZE EEER
FRAR-_Z-_=ZFNARB(EH
D) RVBRREEM AR E TR
BB DA IR A o B B 5 1% 0.055
BT (ZZTE 4 : 0.065/87T) ©

A B AR L 2 b E B B

BZMRE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEZEAA=1THILEXHEA

2023 2022
—EZ=F T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RegsEz)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous TR E LR BRI B
financial year, approved and paid during B E A BRFE 2 R
the interim period of HK$0.075 (2022: BEREER0.075E T
final dividend of HK$0.11) per ordinary (Z=2=—F : REKRSB
share 0.11%7T) 18,712 27,444
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W REBEARRQ R ARSI
Company’s restricted share award BEETEIRE RN Z
scheme Frish 2 (166) (221)
18,546 27,223
Special dividend in respect of the previous & #t & & 7 HAER R R (S &
financial year, approved and paid during B8 - &84 B 12 2 e Rl IR
the interim period of HK$0.05 (2022: Nil) BERERAR0.05ET
per ordinary share (Z2Z—F: #\) 12,474 -
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B IRIBEARA BB R GRS
Company’s restricted share award BEETEIRE RN Z
scheme Fri5h% B (111) -
12,363 -
30,909 27,223
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 247,132,666 (2022: 247,184,909) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed vesting of
all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

B ERRME(E)

10. BARAEERBRRELGESRET

BEREABASENBRESA R LR
B SR AR A HAR R F R HA N B 817
T3 IR N AE 1 81 247,132,666 1% (—F
T T 1 247,184909%) 5+ & - I 5t 5
BrA AR B RSIRMDEEFEIE T AT
FRDIEH TR -

BREBERMNSBIOREERARER
PR B R PR AE A B s M A& - St E AT
Rz EBERNEFORRFTESRE
RENAzBAND EHITEBRREE -
ARBRRAARBERRBE L ZM
BEEEERARS RN EEFERB
B ARAEREESTARTZER
Bt BGETHE -

AEERERLE RN TR T

=

BREAREFRN TS
B BCR AR M ET & -

T
1
5
o]
o
it

12

Number of shares
il 4=
For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=Z+HLAXEAR

2023 2022
—=E=-= -z
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RisEz)
Weighted average number of ordinary SETRERBATABRA
shares in issue during the period used in the 2 %577 & B AL AN 19 &
basic earnings per share calculation 247,132,666 247,184,909
Effect of dilution — weighted average Ber g - TRRINELHE
number of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIR A2 7B BRI (7D 228D
Company's restricted share award scheme  &H &% 1 2 AR HI i % 937,252 933,382
Number of shares used in the diluted ATEEREERTAMARNEE
earnings per share calculation 248,069,918 248,118,291
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

M. YE BERRE

2023 2022
—EZ=F T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—HA—B  REFEE 1,250 1,212
Additions NE 273 939
Depreciation provided during the B, FRITERE
period/year (348) (862)
Exchange realignment M H 58 2 - (39)
Net carrying amount, WARA=+H/+=A
at 30 June/31 December =+—H - REFE 1,175 1,250
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REWY=E
2023 2022
—Z2=-= -z
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZEKHEAE 66,710 66,790
Net loss from fair value adjustments NTEREEEFEE - (80)
Carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December W /N"A=+H +—-A8
=+—HRZEKREE 66,710 66,710

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2023



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and

13. HE
AEEEBEEA

AEEBFEENEETEANSEYE
MEEAK - WEHE—ROBEHR—
E-F - —RMF  AREWELKHE
EEEERMOMETAEEUIIAL -

(a) EAEEZE

B/ FAREEERREENK

the movements during the period/year are as follows: HEREESHHT :
Properties
LY ES
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E -
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (& EZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
As at 1 January mn—H—H 10,815 18,142
Additions NE 183 2,584
Remeasurement on lease modifications FlEEE 2 B#F S 5,498 (1,541)
Depreciation charge e (3,958) (8,064)
Exchange realignment PE 5 & (119) (306)
As at 30 June/31 December RANA=+8
+=—A=+—H” 12,419 10,815
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

13. 28 (&)

REBMEREAA (H)
(b) HERME

#, FNEEEENEEERS

during the period/year are as follows: g -
2023 2022
—E-= S
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 12,027 18,248
New leases HE 183 2,584
Remeasurement on lease modifications THE®EE > E#Hzt= 5,498 (1,541)
Accretion of interest recognised during 8, FE RN FER R BIE K
the period/year 191 397
Payments (NES (4,485) (7,345)
Exchange realignment ME 3 2 (76) (316)
Carrying amount at WANA=+8B,/+=A
30 June/31 December =+—HZEHEEAE 13,338 12,027
Analysed into: ST
Current portion mENER 8,459 7,415
Non-current portion EMBNAL D 4,879 4,612

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

(c) BERAEEMMBEERNES RN -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANAZ=+tHLAEAR

2023 2022

—Z-= —E- =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZ) (CRisEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZFE 191 195
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1 A& E 2 T & 3,958 4,291
Expenses relating to short-term leases FHEHBEEZHAY 115 418
Total amount recognised in profitor loss B S HERE & 58 4,264 4,904
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Notes to

13. LEASES (CONTINUED) 13.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) consisting of
one (2022: one) commercial property in the PRC and one (2022:
one) industrial property in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the period was HK$926,000 (2022: HK$1,006,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

HE (&)
FEEEREAA

AEBRBEEHELHE  BHEERED
¥ (MfsE12) HfE > BEMLRPEEH—
B(E-—F: —B)EAWERA
REBN—B(ZZZZF:—H) T
XAWE-BENKR —RERBR
TRHERRES - AEBNBAERK
FAE U A £926,0008 L (= — 4 :
1,006,000 78 7T) °

RBEEMEEER ARERERH
MPAIZZ AAIBUBH G EHER K
KEARE M 2 REER RERE T T -

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—F
AA=t+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (& &E=Z)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FHEIT

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FRERMEA

14. GOODWILL 14.

2,119 1,324
- 36

2,119 1,360

Gk

(Unaudited)
(REEER)
HK$’000
FET

30 June 2023 —E-_=HXA=T+H

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—8K

—E-—F

and 30 June 2023 NAZTHERAKERE 135,001

(Audited)
(& EZ)
HKS000
FHEIT

31 December 2022 B+ ZRA=1—

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2022 RZTEZZF—H—AK
and 31 December 2022 TZA=+T—HEAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. Rt B EE

Deferred
development Customer
costs relationships Software Total
413
RN EFEfE gt BE

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET FET

30 June 2023
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated

amortisation and impairment
Amortisation provided during the period

At 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2023:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net carrying amount

—E-=%5xA=1H

RZE-_=F—A—RAZHK"

M 2T & NORE 29,075 2,355 14,304 45,734
THEREERE (3,852) (454) (2,420) (6,726)
RZZEZ=F~A=1H 25,223 1,901 11,884 39,008

RZFZ=FX A=1H:

PR 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
ZEHEHERAE (21,008) (12,866) (34,144) (68,018)
REFE 25,223 1,901 11,884 39,008

Deferred

development Customer

costs  relationships Software Total

303
EEHEN BPHE il ok

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(B&%) (g&=1%) (B&ER) (8&=1%)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000

FET FET FHET FET

31 December 2022

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment
Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net carrying amount

46

—E_"“¥+ZH=1-H

RZEZZF—A—HZRAK"

e 2 ERORE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
AEBBERE (4,130) (1,655) (4,839) (10,624)
R-E--F+-A=+—H 29,075 2,355 14,304 45734

F_z::¢+‘ﬂ_+ BR

N-_E-=F—A—H:
B 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
RETEBHENRE (17,156) (12,412) (31,724) (61,292)
REFE 29,075 2,355 14,304 45,734
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. B E 5 IR

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= =

NA=t+8 +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (& =Z)

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K 35,348 54,839
Impairment WA (4,455) (3,923)
30,893 50,916

The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and
on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers,
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

REBZRXSEFAREREG DA
THEMNZEFPZHRZHEME A&
BEEENR  BANRERE - 3%
EUREFARAETRGZEFPME
BEEEH M TZR60K - HMA
FTHEEIHER SIIHEITBHETE
BFE AEREEH - AEE-HES
mHERKEEZEREZERN BE
BT HEMaRRELEG AEE
TERNHEERREIRIEHREFEL
A EFE R EH EMEEESEE -
FE U 5 BR AL T FIS. -

RBEHEEER  BWE HERRR
HRAYYEMBRREZREDNIT :

allowance, is as follows:

30 June 31 December
2023 2022

—E-= —_EF_--
NA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&E=Z)
HKs$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —EARAA 16,966 28,656
1 to 3 months —Z==1AA 8,310 12,381
4 to 6 months mENEA 2,755 3,004
7 to 12 months tE=+=@A 2,862 6,875
30,893 50,916

T -FRHRE | HERGS

EARAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

16. B E 5 IR ()

FEWE BRI 2 B AR R R BT

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
At beginning of period/year ERE A 3,923 3,177
Impairment losses, net BB R TR 902 837
Amount written off as uncollectable I 58 A EE A UL B TR (370) -
Exchange realignment M W S - (91)
At end of period/year RH F R 4,455 3,923

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

REHRE B RRABERERETRE
O ARtETEEEEEE - BEXT)
ENBREAHMEE - At ERBREIA
EMEERENHEBRABENERR
BIEEIR - AR BRI R
BRI EIERAISEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 16. BWE 3 &X (H&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TERHBINAEEFAREERTED
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: EWE SEFNEERRER
At 30 June 2023 R-ZB-Z=HXA=t1H
Past due
B
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
EERE — 1@ -z =@EA
FE WK IE BN AR =EA BAE mat
Expected credit loss rate FEHE E F1E X 100% 0.08% 0.20% 0.47% 15.82% 12.60%
Gross carrying amount  SREI 48 (E
(HK$'000) (FET) 3,623 17,509 5434 3,79% 4,988 35,348
Expected credit losses ~ FEHEE 1B
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 3,623 14 11 18 789 4,455
At 31 December 2022 RZTE_—_F+-A=+—H
Past due
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over 3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
EERE —1& —F ={&aA
JE W 3R BT ER AR =EA Ak et
Expected credit loss rate FEHE E 1B X 100% 0.08% 0.17% 0.25% 5.75% 7.15%
Gross carrying amount ~ SREI 48 (&
(HK$'000) (FE7T) 3,404 34,386 4,816 4,003 8,230 54,839
Expected credit losses ~ FEHEE 1B
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 3,404 28 8 10 473 3,923

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

17. CONTRACT ASSETS

17. BHEE

30June 31 December
2023 2022
—E—= —E-=
AHA=+H +=ZA=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Contract assets arising from: BREENRBUTRIEA:
Sale of goods and provision of software HE S m MR HET &
and GETS services BNETE S RE 2,335 969
Provision of software implementation R E i X AAE
and related services, IT solutions AR - B F R R
implementation and related services GESVELE S 22,290 20,552
Provision of Saa$ product offering and RSB RIS E M
maintenance services HERTE 16,390 3,780
41,015 25,301

Contract assets are mainly initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services as the receipt
of consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets
during the six months ended 30 June 2023 was mainly due to an
increase in the provision of SaaS product offering and maintenance
services near the end of the period.

HRARENUDR D EEEARNMAEESE
REE - RS EELRAERE - A
MEARBEHASRE R XABERS
FIBRAVITERBANEE - 312
HEGEELEBEARY LUREAE
HEBAFREREBBERETAEGL
BEDAARERASE TEXEL
EPWRAFRLIKRER ZZECERAE
BEHEENSESENYEERKE
SEFR -BE_E_=FA=1H
EREAHEOEEEMDEZHR
B EARFT IR B AR 7% B M
EAR TS IE INPTER o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. BREE (@)

BHBENTARK @S EERENT

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is
as follows:

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
NA=1+8 +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HKs’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Within one year —FRA 41,015 25,301

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. BNV EHERBARCHBEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
ANA=t+tH +=—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Eiz)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Debt investment, at fair value BATEAEZERKRE 2,100 2,100
Listed equity investments, at fair value BRAFEFE 2 ETRA
wE 3,704 4,205
5,804 6,305
Portion classified as current assets DEARDNEEIS (3,704) (4,205)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREBEES D 2,100 2,100

The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The debt investment was mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying value of approximately HK$3,704,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$4,205,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

=ZERHRE | HEREREARAR

EtTRARERNBREEEMED
REANTELEBRa ARIMBEE -

BEHRETRHIMEL D BR/RAFE
RBSARIMBEE HEAQR
ERMEBVIFEILININASRFE -

W-_E-_ZFXA=Z1+H AE£BZE
AR & BR T B 4 /& 3,704,000 75 7T
(== —F+ - A=+—H : 4,205,000
BT B ABSE TSR —MEERTT

BB R
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

19. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

19. ENE SRR - HAENRKE

ACCRUALS Rt RIA
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
:g: = =
ANA=tH +=Z—A=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZ) (TEiz)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade payables FERTE B BRRK 10,485 17,034
Other payables EAqth fE T 58 29,620 29,067
Accruals FEETFIE 18,373 23,098
58,478 69,199
Portion classified as current liabilities AR EEILS (58,478) (69,160)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities ~ 248 A3EREN B &3 D - 39

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHHEEER BNEZERNR
HRBZRESTMT

30 June 31 December

2023 2022

~A=1+H +=—A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (& EZ)

HKS’000 HKS000

FET FHET

Within 1 month —EAR 8,959 15,311
1 to 3 months —==18A 882 1,224
4 to 6 months mZE < 1E A - 199
Over 6 months ~NMEA L E 644 300
10,485 17,034

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally JENE SRR AR —HiK30K

settled on 30-day terms.

HAPR 4508 ©
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20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

20. BHEE

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHEEFBEOT
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= =
AHA=+H +=Z—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (& E=Z)
HKSs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Advances received from customers BREF B
Sale of goods and provision of software HE S m MR HEF &
and GETS services BNETFE S RE 1,407 3,378
Provision of software implementation RERGEEIEE
and related services, IT solutions R ~ BRI EHR AR
implementation and related services GESVSEEL NS 18,805 18,584
Provision of Saa$ product offering and RS R IR TS E
maintenance services HE R 35,122 33,635
55,334 55,597
Portion classified as current liabilities NEAERBEBEND (53,636) (54,190)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 2 {8 AR BB E LD 1,698 1,407

The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances
received to render software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance
services. The decrease in contract liabilities during the six months
ended 30 June 2023 was mainly due to the decrease in advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of goods and
provision of software and GETS services at the end of the period.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

ARDENABETEEERREEREMG
EHEEBERE BB EBRTR
s N B8 PR 7S LA K 4 7 AR A AT U ER
HeR -z _—_E-_=FA=+8
EAREANEGHNEBERLEZANEH
REBHEERRIBEEHRBNE
TESRBZERZFLTUR DT »
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX 21. BB TE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the B/ RN BELERBEERAGGEZE
period/year are as follows: AT
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEEE
Temporary
differences
arising from
Lease contract
liabilities liabilities Total
REEHNEE
HEAE ZERFERE s
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REX) (REEZR)
HKs’000 HKs$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HA—H - 2,205 2,205
Deferred tax credited to the AT A BREZEEBRE
condensed consolidated ZIERERIA
statement of profit or loss
during the period 885 173 1,058
Gross deferred tax assets R-ZE-_=FA=+H
at 30 June 2023 BEHIBEEESR 885 2,378 3,263
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRESE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluation development acquisitionof ~ Withholding Right-of-
of properties costs  subsidiaries taxes use assets Total
Wi
BE MERAZ
NEER BENE ATERE BIH GREEE aE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REBR) (REER)  (RBER) (REBK)  (RBEQ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx FiEr FiEx FiEr FiEx
At 1 January 2023 RZBE-=%-F—H 366 4,797 4,057 887 - 10,107
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ E3R#1R: /(T A)
the condensed consolidated BREEERRL
statement of profit or loss EREHE
during the period - (635) (692) 30 869 (428)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-=F,xA=1H
at 30 June 2023 BEREEEEE 366 4,162 3,365 917 869 9,679

54
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B RRMIEE (48)
21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21 EERE (&)
Deferred tax assets B IEEE
Temporary
differences
arising from
contract
liabilities
rEa#ak
ErRERE
(Audited)
(RgEZ)
HKS’000
FET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-——F—H—H 2,061
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FAFF ARG EmR CELERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year 347
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (203)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 RZZEZ=—F+=A=+—H
RIETIRE EER 2,205
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluation ~ development acquisitionof ~ Withholding
of properties costs subsidiaries taxes Total
e
EE  MBRARZ
MEER HERA LTEHAE B k]
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(L&) (&&E%) (E&=1%) (B&E%) (&%)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
FET FET FAET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 i k- = B =| 386 5478 5,564 774 12,202
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ ER#E (5t A)
the consolidated statement of BEBEREZ
profit or loss during the year EIER IR (20) (681) (1,507) 132 (2,076)
Exchange realignment BN R - - - (19) (19
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R-E-—%+-R
31 December 2022 —+—RREHE
BEEE 366 4,797 4,057 887 10,107
—FhHmE | BB RAEE AR AR 55



56

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities in
connection with certain guarantees not provided for in the financial

statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to

22. FREE

RBEHEEER  WARRIEHRR
REEHBERE TERABZHRE
BT

RAAFERAEBAE Y ETFELOM
HMEMBRTRELEZBEORE RN
= TIR1TIE M A 8031,700,00078 7T (—

HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2022: HK$31,700,000), of which - —_F+=H=+—H :31,700,000

HK$20,541,000 (31 December 2022: HK$20,694,000) was utilised as

at 30 June 2023.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

BIT) 2 ER - E 20,541,000 T (—
T —_F+=ZH=+—H :20694,000
BT ERE_=FA=+H#HAH -

23. BEALTRS
BULEHBREEMSH RIS -
RHRESIN REBRBRNL LT
THEEALRS
AEMFESBASZMEWT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHIELAEA

2023 2022

—E-= —E-—F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZ) (RegEZ)

HKS’000 HKS000

FET FET

Short-term employee benefits = EE RN 8,074 9,072
Equity-settled share-based payment % e 48 B AR 0 2 TR 2

expense 297 180

Post-employment benefits BEEL 2 B T 78 81

Total compensation paid to key SNEEEBRAEL
management personnel <& 28 (& 8,449 9,333

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from
the connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the

Listing Rules.

WFERER SREEREETET
FRAIB14ABIENBEERSIRTE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

24. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current
portion of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current
portion of other payables and financial liabilities included in
accruals reasonably approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments or the effect
of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current deposits and other payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms.
In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial
instruments reasonably approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investment is based on available market prices.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

B ERRME(E)

24, IR TEAFERAFEEZER

Y

RBEHREER AEEVBEE
kafEzREERE A HESEMMES -

ERECHERSRERARTEE
EEMRITER  BREZEFX R

MoZBREREMEWHIE  BHE
ZEF - RN ZEMBEMNKAR
AFARFRBEZHHEBEzAFER
HEEmESEMAE  TEANZFT
AZBH ARSI RNTEL TERX -

PBEERBBZATFENIEERR
SHZERENRZZARSTES
BARR Mg g0 B L SR SIERR
THFTERBRE ARG ETHS
TERQAYE:

FRBpREMNEBEMNFRENRFE
TERBREMENELUGIROTA
HEMARREREMRMAE &
ERAR ZEMBIANATFERE
REEAEMAEE ©

FHBRAEE 2 R FEDRTSRE

=]
=Fme

AFANEBREZEMERESF AT
BNETSERSE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

24. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2023

3B (R)
DR EERER

24, IR TEAFERAFEER

TREBRASEENBITAZ R VER

SERERE
BAFEFEZEE
R-CFE-_=FXNA=+H

Fair value measurement using

AVERAUTEETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EE O ERUBRE BEARTHE

mHHRE [PN¢ - BAHE
(F18) ($F28E) (%358) wE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RRBER) (REBER) (REER)
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value BATELERARZ
through profit or loss: HMBEE

Listed equity investments ETRARE 3,704 - - 3,704
Debt investment BEREE - 2,100 - 2,100
3,704 2,100 - 5,804
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24. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

24, IR TEAFERAFEEZER

&E (|)
DFEFHRERE ()

BEAFEHEZEE: (B)
RZF-Z—aF+—-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFERBATEEHE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EE BARUBR EATIEHE
mIHME WA BIR B A
(B18) (%B2E) (%38) B
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (&%) (& EZ) (&EZ)
HKS000 HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS$000
T FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value BEATERLBEREARZ
through profit or loss: BBEE
Listed equity investments ETRARE 4,205 - - 4,205
Debt investment BEREE - 2,100 - 2,100
4,205 2,100 - 6,305
Liabilities measured at fair value: BEATEFEZAE:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2023 and 31 December 2022.

During the period ended 30 June 2023, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

T -FRHRE | HERGS

EARAT

REBR-_Z-_=FA=+tA k=
T F+ - A=t+—BUETHE
NEEFHEZHBEE -

HE_Z - A=+81LHH"
MU BEERMEEENS  FH1/E8H
F2E2EMEATFTENEEE I
AFEHEEASEHEIE (HE=
T —F+ A=+ —HIFE &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. i EMEBEEEERBE

60

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include lease liabilities,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals,
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.

AEEZIZMKTABREHEERE
EEMRTEFIANRELEFRRE
EE-UWEWBIAZFEREDAR
AEBZEBBME AEEAEMS
EWHEERAR  MEKE SRR
e REMEBKKE  EBNE SRR
K E AR - 5 A R 2 W
BRBEREATFELBESARZTG
BE HEVYHEERAEIEAR
BEEEREL -

AEEMBEIRAELEZ TZRBRAFT
KRk SNERR - EERR - BAE
RERERBDECRER EFSEH
I R &N ATt & IR % TR Ut B L
ZHR e

MEEE
AEBREMSHNEEGHMAT 2R

Rt BEANEEFRNBITRRZH
MEFBZRE MRITHERBEMR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEBEEAEERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) F =@k (8)
TEREBINEFRBEMEHEF T
BRT  AEEZBRFRANEF (BBY
R RIBTERMIBRTERAZLTE)
HHREEIBAIREHIRE &) 2 HRIRE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
HEhishn, B %L A % F
GE4)  #in,/ CEd)
(Unaudited)
(RisEZz)
HKS000
FET
As at 30 June 2023 R=-ZBE=-=FxXA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) (337)
United States dollar ETT (50) (925)
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR (TARKED (50) (229)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 337
United States dollar EVIN 50 925
RMB AR 50 229
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZE-_—FA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (188)
United States dollar ETT (25) (436)
RMB AR (25) (124)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 188
United States dollar X7 25 436
RMB AR 25 124

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

R FhHRE | R R

BROR BB s A SN - BIR SR B4

e -

= & (T
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEMEEREERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’

functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax arising from RMB denominated financial

ShEs LB

AEEEHXZEEER - WRRE
ERENEEFENERZEMLYES
BIANEERBMZ AR REEZ
PR K A

TRBIIEFRE LM BEEH TR
BRT - ARERREHEAEA (U
ARG E IS T BFEE) 2 BB
AEFHARBERALABED

instruments. BRRIEE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ERLEHA RR B A0 %8
(TE&)  #m/ CE2)
(Unaudited)
(REgEZ)
% HKS000
FET
As at 30 June 2023 R-ZEBZ=HXA=+1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT A AREEZE 5 (693)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it/ 7T i, A R B FHE (5) 693
As at 30 June 2022 RZEZZFXA=+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WB T A AREEZE 5 (430)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {78 7T 34, A REEFHE (5) 430

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on

an ongoing basis.

B OR B8 0t A 5P
e -

HAKERERREL

EEER

AEBETEERAMREERFZF=
THREEGRETRS HEBAEHE
ZHBEK KRB RIREERTETR
HZEP GEXRBELHNAZREET
EEBERRERF o 1o BUKEH 2N
RAEEERERHEES -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and period/year-end
staging classification as at 30 June 2023 and 31 December 2022. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

B ERRME(E)

25. B RREEBEREEX (&)

FERR (&)
REEBRRRFRITEEER

TRERERAEEBEEREMNEER
BzkeazEEE  EBUEEER
BEE (BRIEAETERBZ K AL
THBRTREEMER)  RRZF
T ZFERAZtTHRZE - —_F+=
A=+—RAH FRMEREIE-
FIE7MEEAMBEENRDER -

As at 30 June 2023 R-ZFE-=FXA=1H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T=f8A
AHEEER 2HEBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-KR E-RA L E:p: EEx
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
FAT FET FAT FET FAT
Trade receivables* U E SEZ> - - - 35,348 35,348
Contract assets BNEE - - - 41,015 41,015
Deposits and other receivables Be REMEKFUE
- Normal** —EEw 4,949 - - - 4,949
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER
- Not yet past due —HRaH 761 - - - 761
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERABRSEE
- Not yet past due —HRBH 298,613 - - - 298,613
304,323 - - 76,363 380,686
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

25. I EREREEFERBEEK (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging (continued)

FERR (&)

REEBRRAFRIEREER ()

As at 31 December 2022 R-IFEZZF+-H=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=fA
EHEEER HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FBR FREER F=RER Blen Fak
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&&R) (BER) (B&ER) (BE8) (&%)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAT FET FHET FAT THET
Trade receivables* BN E 5 R - - - 54,839 54,839
Contract assets ANEE - - - 25,301 25,301
Deposits and other receivables Be REMEKFUE
- Normal** —EE* 5,504 - - - 5,504
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER
- Not yet past due —HRBH 1,020 - - - 1,020
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBRSEE
- Not yet past due —HRBH 309,773 - - - 309,773
316,297 - - 80,140 396,437

*%

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in notes 16 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal”when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”

*%

A5 (B ST 1L 5 % 5 B (B B JE
WE G  BRIFHBIEELE D
B 1% 5 A B R A 16 ©

1 1 s R Bt JRE 40 50 R 2K 80 B R I A
BEHX T BEEEAV S ERLIER
BB X 15200 - R E# 2 KA
W EA s EEZ B [IER] - Al
RIR B EEANEEEERIRE]
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
(note 18) as at 30 June 2023 and 31 December 2022. The Group’s
listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

B ERRME(E)

25. B RREEBEREEX (&)

IR A fE A8 B

Hx${EWHME?aEEEAH§§5 & A (&
MEBFBEZECERRAERZQ

FEREZ B - AEEZBAERE
/rE/\E—7—_ﬂE/\)E] +E|&_
2::¢+ A=+—BRERAF
BEREERARIYBEE-LHBRA
K& (MiE18) 2 ER AR E - K&
B2 b AR ENE BB L
RS HEEERRTSRENE -

T%%ZEIJEF)TEEi\mm%lﬁ’ﬁﬁT“

ER T RARGHEMBRBEEER UK
FHERAERE AEHELTRAKE
REEHEEER 2 A TEEEEH10%
B MHEAEE 2 BRRE -

Carrying Increase/

amount of (decrease)

equity in profit

investments before tax

BRAEREZ RR B A

IREE g CRD)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBEX) (REEZX)

HKs’000 HKs’000

FET FET
As at 30 June 2023 R-ZBZ=HXA=1H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: RSB LMz R]RAERE

— financial assets at fair value through —EBAFELEZARZ
profit or loss WBEE 3,704 370

=ZERHRE | HEREREARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEMEEREERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

PR A& 1% JEL B (48)
Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease)
equity in profit
investments before tax

BARE 2 B 35 A A
FRmEE 1 ORd)

(Audited) (Audited)
(Fe &%) (F&&EZ)
HKS'000 HKS000
FET TFET
As at 31 December 2022 R=-B=-—F+=A=+—8H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EBAE LT ZBRARE :
— financial assets at fair value through —RAFELEE AR
profit or loss BEE 4,205 421
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BROR BB s K o - WA & B s L AT
profits. A2 o
Liquidity risk REBESEE
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to AEBZEERBRERENESIN
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short JENERBERB UBEAGEE AN
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group Ko BBRBERRERE  RNEBEER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and LMHEEIERBE ARMIBEHAEFHRE
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the BRHEcRe RIRITHEBKERIETT
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash R WRERREREREENKZ
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior TE SREEEBRETYERLAE

management on an ongoing basis.

BzRERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

B ERR ML (E

25. B RREEBEREEX (&)

RBESER ()

REEHELEER AEBREAY
AWBNFFAFEZHEEERHE
mamT

As at 30 June 2023 R-ZB-Z=HXA=t1H
Lessthan 3to less than 1to5
On demand 3months 12 months years Total
=z
REREER JIR=ER +=@AR —-ZI%E L]
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER)
HKs$'000 HKs$'000 HKs$'000 HKs$'000 HKs$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade payables BB S8 9,486 355 644 - 10,485
Other payables Hi (508 - 29,620 - - 29,620
Lease labilities BEAR - 1,690 7,138 5,096 13,924
Financial liabilities included in accruals AR TR KRG - 7,949 - - 7,949
Guarantees given to banks for RREBFRZ ETANEL
performance bonds/guarantees BORE /BRMART
issued in relation to certain contracts Rl 2 BR
undertaken by the Group 20,541 - - - 20,541
30,027 39,614 7,782 5,096 82,519

T -FRHRE | HERGS
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

25. I EREREEFERBEEK (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE LR (F)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8H
Lessthan  3tolessthan Tto5
On demand 3months  12months years Total
-3
REXEE JR=@EAR TZEAR —EZ8F ek
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(gs%) (EEk) W&k (BF5%) (EER)
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade payables ENESHER 16,508 75 451 - 17,034
Other payables Hi 58 - 29,067 - - 29,067
Lease liabilities BEAR - 1,631 6,013 4,660 12304
Financial liabilities included in accruals AR TR HKARE - 8172 - - 8172
Guarantees given to banks for RREBRZ ETANEL
performance bonds/guarantees BHRE /ERERBRT
issued in relation to certain contracts Rtz BR
undertaken by the Group 20,694 - - - 20,694
37,202 38,945 6,464 4,660 87,271
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25.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the period ended 30 June
2023 and year ended 31 December 2022.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’

equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 August 2023.

=ZERHRE | HEREREARAR

B ERRME(E)

25. B RREEBEREEX (&)

26.

EXEH

AEBEAERZTEZEBNERRE
AEBRBELEZRENLHTRESE
AR AXRHEEBRBBERE K
RAMEE-

AEERBEERR 2 BE RIBHAE
FZH e THENLEEER

HEERERHE RNEBE A ABBH

BHRREZECRE RMRRFEE
ISREITHR - MRIF AR E ARG o
@i—é—ifﬁ/\ﬂ JFEHJ:H)%FEJ&
HE-_ZT-__F+-A=1+—HLF
EAR - AEBEZEXREEBE  BEK
T e o

REEE 2 BN A BERE R A D AEAK o

it o H B B R R

EgEEeN == N\ A+ \BH#E
N5 i ) R HREA TS 3R % o
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Other Information
Hin &R

DIRECTORS'INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

ESREARAERRG 2 SRR

F

RZZFEZ=FNA=+H ' FEFREAQH
NEBEZE (EEREHFRBEGD ([
FHLHAEEG]) EXVER) 2 IR RIS
FEAANRIEREES KEEKPIZE 352
BEREFEZELMP iR ™
BITAEERTEAFRHINEZEETA ST
MEARRRRBAR G2 BT

ERREBRZHR

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE  SoRERME

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued

Note owned corporation Total share capital

EARRDT

B EiB BR®ITRA

Name of director EEnA i3 BEREE ZEHLF wny ERal
Ir. Ng Cheung Shing REBEETLRM (a) 6,564,000 114,614,000 121,178,000 48,57
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam RIEFREAE 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.40
Mr.Leung King San Sunny RS54 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 0.41
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung REIE LA 200,000 - 200,000 0.08
8,794,000 114,614,000 123,408,000 49.46
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DIRECTORS'INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

EERKRMDREERD 2 s R
B (&)

R—EHEBEERD 2H A :

Percentage
Number of shares of the
RG#HE associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
CEACL ]
EE il BERTRA
EEiA REEE AR BALNE 2B gl BEEA REHAT BAlt
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REBTETREM Technologies KPR ZHBLE deferred (note FiT5E (b)) i
International BRERER
Limited

RERGERAA
Notes:

(@) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Ir. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Ir. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR

P &E -

(@) CS.(BVI) Limited 2 2 EKIBRARIBHEIEE
RAR) ([BE )75 114,614,000 B (D - =
R4 TI2AA HER CS. (BVI) Limited 2 %
BRE EITESRZHTE=S 22—k E
ZAXZHE - M CS. (BVI) Limited Bl & #E 7 5 B
BEAE LTESIESITE=S 2 — 5
FERERE- A BEESERBEEG R
EBLETREMEEENGBETES 2
BRI EAER -

(b) 743,250,000 PR EEEIER DA EHFE -

B EXEREEN RZTE=_=FA=1+AH"
MEEEN AR REEFEEER 2K
AR R T - EARER R E R
FI2FAB TR HRBEBLTETAES
ETRFXZNEETRRITHAE AR A
KR P E s SRR
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employee
(including directors) of the Group until the 10™ anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares
will then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting.
The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified
to them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other incentive and under the
Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2022.

EEBREROIES 2ER

BTN TRER Rt &1 Ko [ A R BB {n 22 B 5t
S MmEWEEN  RAREATAERE -
BMERTEINEFARSEISEZRBAR
P F A FERB AR R B B 5 M &
BB BT AZSENDEREFT
{8 A e e B AR P8 & BB FT 32 ()
ZH EEEFEBAEMEMEARRZ
BRm=E-

BRI 5 2B 8

ARBR-_ZEENFRA-_+_BEME
PR &I REN T E ([TREFTED KRR ZF
—+tFRA=ZF+—B(E=EBH)EEZ
SRR E - RIKEER A AR ([H
BEn) BEEEBPRETHEFERTA
SEAERER (BRES) - ARQENH
RECTZTARBARAZERERE
EZFENERREAEEERRORAE
SHEE  c BERNEZERBEBERERES
ZEEWRRERBLES - ZEEHBHEAE
FREZBDES  THEZRARRTEDR
BIIRE10% N ESTSANSHEF 2 BBEEAM
Ao (BRI E b 58 E) & 88 Eh &t
ZEREBERITENEEREETFEE
AFEHTZBROHBEZEERBETISBA
KRB TR B TR 2 30%) °

FRZBEAREEREZBRNFBRR
TR FFR-
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30
June 2023.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

Other Information (continued)

Htt &

BRFI R0 R (&)

TREVNNEHZE TS -_=FA=1HBI-HH
Nz 22T 218 T 2B (D < 8B M E &) -

(&)

FEREBRAHUA
Closing price
of the shares
immediately
Transferred Fairvalueof  before the
At in/(out) Vested  Cancelled Lapsed At awardsat date on which
Name of category  1January during during during during 30 June Award Vestingperiodof ~ thedateof  theawards
of participant 2023 theperiod theperiod theperiod the period 2023 date Awarded Shares grant  were granted
BT
i i ®¥  KEBH
SEENE —BCzf B H B B -BZ=f 4] ®EAN A-x
R -B-RA BA/(#) EBE B EAM AA=tH A EERGERD AE  ROUHE
HKS HKS
A1 V73
Directors
£
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing 50,000 - (50,000) - - - 14May 2018 30 April 2019to 243 293
30 April 2023
RREAETED “E-\& ZE-NENA=TAZ
RATMA  —Z-=FMA=TH
Ir.Ng Cheung Shing 150,000 - (50,000) - - 100,000 6 June 2022 30June 2023 to 224 260
30 June 2025
RRBLETER “E--F “T-ZERAZTREE
~ARAE ZEZRERAZTA
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam 50,000 - (50,000) - - - 14May 2018 30 April2019to 243 293
30 April 2023
REREE ZE-\& ZE-NEMA=TARZ
RATME —E-ZfRmAZtH
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung 50,000 - (50,000) - - - 14May 2018 30 April 2019to 243 293
30 April 2023
RE#TE ZE-\§ ZE-NEMA=TAZ
TATME —E-ZfMAZTH
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung 150,000 - (50,000) - - 100,000 6 June 2022 30June 2023 to 224 260
30 June 2025
RE#TE “E--fF “F--ERASTRE
AARE ZEZRERAZTA
Sub-total
1N 450000 - (250000 - - 200,000

R ZFRHRE | MERGEEARAR
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

BRI EB S (F)

ABREBRNOHE
Closing price
of the shares
immediately
Transferred Fairvalueof ~ beforethe
At in/(out) Vested  Cancelled Lapsed At awardsat date onwhich
Name of category  1January during during during during 30 June Award Vestingperiodof ~ thedateof  theawards
of participant 2023  theperiod theperiod theperiod the period 2023 date Awarded Shares grant  were granted
B
i i ®¥  KEBH
SEENE b it B iy Hi Bh ZBZZE %R ®EAK A-x
&R -B-B EA/(i) EBE B EBAM AA=TH R RBROERA ATE  BROWHE
HKS HKS
&1 AT
Three top-paid individuals (excluding Directors)
ZRESHMHEA(ESHM
In aggregate 40,000 25,000 (65,000) - - - 14May 2018 30 April 2019to 243 293
30 April 2023
CHI “T-\§ ZE-NERA=TAZE
RATMA —Z-=#MA=1H
In aggregate 40,000 - (20,000) - - 20,000 4July2019 30 June 2020 to n 377
30 June 2024
ait “E-NF -E-TEANAZHRE
tAmMA  ZEZRERA=TA
In aggregate 120,000 90,000 (70,000) - - 140,000 6June2022 30 June 2023 to 30 June 2025 224 260
At ZBoZF “TCZERAZTHEE
~ARA ZEZRERAZTA
Sub-total
N 200000 115000 (155000) . - 160,000
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Other Information (continued)

HbER (&)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BREIR MRS (&)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
FEREBRAHUA
Closing price
of the shares
immediately
Transferred Fairvalueof  before the
At in/(out) Vested  Cancelled Lapsed At awardsat date onwhich
Name of category  1January during during during during 30 June Award Vestingperiodof ~ thedateof  theawards
of participant 2023 theperiod theperiod theperiod the period 2023 date Awarded Shares grant  were granted
5
i i B  RBES
SEENE —BCzf B i B Br  -BZ=f 4] ®BAK A-x
R -B-A BA/(#) EEE  2E# 2A¥  RB=tH RH EERAERH AE  ROUHE
HKS HKS
&1 V-7
Other employees
EftfEE
In aggregate 140,000 (25,0000 (115,000) - - - 14May 2018 30 April2019to 243 293
30 April 2023
ait “T-\§ ZE-NEMA=TAE
RATMA  —Z-=#MA=1H
In aggregate 48,000 - (24,000) - - 24000  4July2019 30 June 2020 to 30 June 2024 n 377
aif “E-nE ZECERESA-TRE
tAmA  ZEZMERA=TH
In aggregate 750,000 (90,0000 (220,000) - - 440,000 6June2022 30 June 2023 t0 30 June 2025 224 260
At “F--F —E-ZFxA-tHZ
~ARA ZEZRERAZHA
Sub-total
N 938000 (1150000 (359,000) - - 464,000
Total
@t 1,588,000 - (764,000) - - 824,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
immediately before the dates on which the awards were vested during
the period ended 30 June 2023 was HK$2.32.

* No purchase price is payable by the Employees for the Awarded Shares.

* There are no performance targets attached to the Awarded Shares.
At the beginning and at the end of the reporting period, the total number

of shares which is available for being further awarded under the Award
Scheme was 21,283,838.

—FPHRE | M AREEAR AR

%@iiziiiﬁﬂz+5¢%ﬁ'$@
AT MRN B REEEE B AT i
BB A2328 7T °

*  ERBARLEERLNTEEE -
* BERDTRIEARE -

Rk s B &K - S2E) AT 84 26 21,283,838
&A% A AT 4R 45 H o
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp &R (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

FTERRREMAL (AFAQTE
EFREFBTHRAR) RROEKEBER

10z &

RZE-—=FA=+H U TAEKRQRA
FOERRY HAR IR 35 5 M HA & 1501 55 336 16 4R &
FEZEDELHAREARQREZEITRA

section 336 of the SFO: MR 5% DA 2 fEES
Long positions: #E:
Percentage
of the
Number of Company's Number
Capacity and nature ordinary  issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company  Notes of interest shares held capital  options held
EADT
il BRITRE P
ADNERRER BB Wit BaREZME EERYE Bolk  BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@)  Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BEMHMRARA BERERER
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@) Througha controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -
BRI
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
BERERER
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL") (b)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
BRI
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") (b)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEHARLQR ((ME]) BRI EHIR
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") ~ (b)  Througha controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIGCEERBERAR (TREZ]) BRI
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") ~ (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIMCZEERRAR(TRA]) BRXEHIR
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
FFHX BERERER
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,665 2.23 -
BEERERER
() Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 3.77 -

BRZER AT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 172,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the period was approximately HK$400,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.
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Other Information (continued)
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(b) PILBHLZzZEMWEBAR  HLRAIAMEZ
2EWBAR -RIEAEMZ2EWB AR
MEZEZWB AR BRRMEZRIKRE
BETESIESITFEBRBR=9 2 — MR EE -
RBRBHELBEEN B REE-FEk
HIL % 18 1E 72 PIL FT 3% 29,148,938 i% 7 A &) i%
aleak? ¥ =g

() 9,397,335 1% 1% 19 M Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ([ PSALJ) ¥/ ° PSAL B Webb David
Michael c S EH#EZH B = 5 xm - Bt -
Webb David Michael 5t 4 %% 18 {E 7 PSAL 5
2 iR EE R o
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PrEBHN EX[EFENIMD REEERN
ZRBMRR] —HZARNRAREFI  HE
ERMALTRARB RO HABBERDTHEE
RIBE 75 LS GRHI5E 336 A Trcdk 2 &

HEAR -
BE BOHIHEARAQXALHES

BN ARE ARG EZEFT N TEA
EREZAEHRRETZENGR B
%588 B AR 8] 4 172,000 8% B ) B 1E 42 B
BRHEGD - BAREEZERHEZNGH
48 E8 4 /% 400,000 75 7T
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Board considered that the powers and authorities have not been
concentrated as all major decisions have been made in consultation
with the Board and appropriate Board committees, as well as top
management. In addition, there are at least three independent non-
executive directors on the Board offering their experience, expertise,
independent advice and views from different perspectives. The Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate balance of power and
safeguards in place.

The Board reviewed the scope of operation and management structure
of the Group and considered the current organisation structure was
effective and there is no imminent need to appoint CEO. However, the
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and will consider whether any change, including
the appointment of CEO, are necessary.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 18
August 2023 in relation to the appointment of CEO, Mr. Chung Kin Yip
has been appointed as CEO of the Group to manage day-to-day business
with effect from 1 September 2023.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2023.

EEERER

ARBBARDEER 2 BE R TR K
FEEER URHRLEL =2ERAEMEER
HRRA - EFEHEEREXERHAR
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BEHM—BHETEBBRARSAABARA
AlEH EMAA ([ EmRE) K Ex14% 85
TEERTA((EERTA) A2
Al -

EEREATRZTRMERXEC21RHIER
TRETRAS (TTRERD ZARESR
B AR — ARERE-

EFeRn ARMBERNRTHUKESS
HEEZB@NUREREERHA  HitHE
BAORERLAES - I EFEHAED
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5 o
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78 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2023



RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules
and other regulations. This framework was built around a structure
that enables the Board and the management to discharge their risk
management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation as
well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining
risk appetite in accordance with the Group'’s business strategies and
objectives, formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those
strategies, and establishing procedures and limits for the approval,
control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included three executive directors and one independent
non-executive director. The Risk Management Committee had direct
involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite, and determined
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to
its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures
that the management adopted in executing its business functions.
The Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 have not been audited, but the Audit
Committee has discussed with the management of the Company and the
external auditors, Ernst & Young, on the appropriateness and consistency
of the accounting policies that have been adopted by the Company. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results and the interim report
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023.
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in information
of the Company’s director is set out below.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen has retired as an independent non-
executive director of Texhong International Group Limited (stock code:
2678) on 25 May 2023.

EHEETEHR

B FHHEBIFE1351BN)IE ARFIESEZ
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